
September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 1 

 

 
AGENDA 

CITY OF FERNDALE – HUMBOLDT COUNTY CALIFORNIA – U.S.A. 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: September 6, 2012 

 Time: 7 pm 

 Posted: 8/30/12  
 
We welcome you to the meeting. Members of the Public may be heard on any business item on this Agenda before or 

during the City Council consideration of the item. The public may also directly address the City Council on any item of interest 
to the public that is not on the Agenda during the public comment time; however, the City Council generally cannot take action 
on an item not on the agenda. 

A person addressing the City Council will be limited to five (5) minutes unless the Mayor of the City Council grants a 
longer period of time. While not required, we would appreciate it if you would identify yourself with your name and address 
when addressing the Council. 

This City endeavors to be ADA compliant. Should you require assistance with written information or access to the 
facility, or a hearing amplification, please call 786-4224 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

TO SPEAK ON ANY ISSUE, BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE MAYOR BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE PODIUM, STATE YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD (optional), AND DIRECT YOUR COMMENTS ONLY TO THE COUNCIL. 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Mayor 
2. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
3. ROLL CALL –Deputy City Clerk 
4. CEREMONIAL ...................................................................................................................  None 
5. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 
6. STUDY SESSIONS   
7. PUBLIC COMMENT. (This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on 

any matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next 
regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of 
the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an 
urgent nature requiring immediate action. This portion of the meeting will be 
approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each speaker given no 
more than five minutes.) ................................................................................................  None 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR. (All matters listed under this category are considered to 
be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. Unless a 
specific request is made by a Councilmember, staff or the public, the Consent 
Calendar will not be read. There will be no separate discussion of these items. 
However, if discussion is required, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately under “Call Items.”) 

a. Acceptance of Accounts Payable .......................................................................  Page 5 
b. Approval of previous minutes:  

i. August 2, 2012 ......................................................................................  Page 17 
ii. August 23, 2012 ....................................................................................  Page 18 

9. CALL ITEM 
10. PRESENTATION / Community Forum 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 2 

 

11. BUSINESS 
a. Interview and selection of Council Member to fill out Niels Lorenzen’s 

term until November 4, 2014` ...........................................................................  Page 20 
b. Suddenlink-Change in Ownership ......................................................................  Page 25 
c. Request for a Green Parking Zone in Front of the Red Front Store...................  Page 31 
d. Resolution 2012-25 Approving the submittal of a Functional 

Classification Change for Local Streets and Roads to the State of 
California, Department of Transportation .........................................................  Page 34 

e. Second Reading and possible Adoption of Ordinance 2012-03 An 
ordinance amending Purchasing Ordinance 07-04, Section 6.01 ......................  Page  40 

12. CORRESPONDENCE  ........................................................................................................  Page  44 
13. REPORTS 

a. City Manager Staff Report and Community Events ...........................................  Page  48 
b. Commissions / Committees and others 

i. Planning Commission ............................................................................  Page 62 
ii. Design Review .......................................................................................  Page 64  

iii. Sign Committee.....................................................................................  Page 67   
iv. Library Board .........................................................................................  Page 70   

c. Council Reports and Comment 
i. RREDC Minutes .....................................................................................  Page 72 

ii. HMRA Minutes ......................................................................................  Page 74 
iii. RCEA Minutes .......................................................................................  Page 76 
iv. HCAOG  Minutes ...................................................................................  Page 79 
v. HWMA Abstract ....................................................................................   None 

 
14. ADJOURN ........................................................................................................................  Page 81 

 
This notice is posted in compliance with Government Code §54954.2. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Ferndale City Council will be held on 
THURSDAY, October 5, 2012 in the Auditorium of City Hall at 7:00pm 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 3 

 

 

 

Section 1 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Section 2 
Pledge Allegiance 

 
Section 3 
Roll Call 

 
Section 4 

Ceremonial 
 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 4 

 

 
 

  Section 5 

Modifications to the Agenda 
 

Section 6 
Study Sessions 

 

Section 7 

Public Comment 
 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and 
over which the Council has jurisdiction. 
 
Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next regular 
agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rd of the Council (three of the 
five members) that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent nature 
requiring immediate action. 
 
This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each 
speaker given no more than five minutes. Please state your name and address for the record. 
(This is optional.) 

Section 8 

Consent Agenda 
 
All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  
 
Is there anyone on the Council, Staff or the public that would like to pull an item off the 
Consent Agenda for scrutiny? Those items will be considered separately under “Call Items.” 
  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 5 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 6 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 7 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 8 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 9 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 10 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 11 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 12 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 13 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 14 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 15 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 16 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 17 

 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
City Council Minutes for August 2, 2012 

 

Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:01p.m. Present were 
Councilmen Ken Mierzwa and Stuart Titus, along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish, City Clerk Nancy 
Kaytis-Slocum, City Engineer Praj White, and City Police Chief Bret Smith.  We had a moment of silence 
for Councilman Niels Lorenzen who passed away recently. Those present pledged allegiance to the flag. 
The City Clerk called roll call. John Maxwell was absent. Modifications to the agenda: The Airline 
Presentation will be presented at the September meeting. 
 
Ceremonial: The City Clerk swore in Officer Adam Stricker, and Chief Bret Smith pinned his badge on. 
The City Clerk read “A Proclamation of the City Council of the City of Ferndale Honoring Humboldt 
County Supervisor Jimmy Smith” and the Mayor presented it to him. Councilmen Titus and Mierzwa 
added their thanks to Mayor Farley’s. Supervisor Jimmy Smith thanked the council and talked about 
some of the projects we’d seen completed. City Manager Jay Parrish presented Jimmy Smith with a Jack 
Mays drawing from the Council and staff. 
 
Consent Calendar: MOTION: (Mierzwa/Titus) Accept Accounts Payable and Approve the minutes from 
July 5, 2012 meeting. Unanimous.  
 
City Manager Jay Parrish presented Ordinance 2012-03 An ordinance amending Purchasing Ordinance 

07-04, Section 6.01. MOTION: (Titus/Mierzwa) Approve the First Reading of Ordinance 2012-03 An 

ordinance amending Purchasing Ordinance 07-04, Section 6.01.1(d) by title only, and assign it to the 

September City Council meeting for a Second Reading and possible adoption. Unanimous. 

 

Russ Park Committee Appointment. MOTION: (Titus/Mierzwa) Appoint City Resident John Vernon to fill 

one of the two vacancies on the Russ Park Committee, effective immediately. Unanimous. 

 
City Manager Staff Report: Jay Parrish reported that there are new owners of Suddenlink, our cable 

provider. Sue Buske will be representing the cities and the county in the franchise negotiations at a cost 

of $5000 to the City. He also reported that there have been some problems at the Community Center 

with rentals, and that he is working to modify the rental procedure to alleviate the problems. 

 

Council Comments: Stuart Titus reminded everyone that the County Fair is coming up. Mayor Jeffrey 

Farley announced that he would not be seeking re-election. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:28PM. The next regular Council Meeting is scheduled for September 6, 2012 

at 7PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 

City Clerk 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 18 

 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
City Council Minutes for August 23, 2012 

 

Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the Special City Council Meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Present were 
Councilmen Ken Mierzwa, and Stuart Titus along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish, City Attorney Russ 
Gans, and Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith. Those present pledged allegiance to the flag. The Deputy 
City Clerk called roll call. Councilmen John Maxwell was absent.  

 

Fresnel Lens: City Manager Jay Parrish and City Attorney Russ Gans gave an update on the Fresnel Lens. 
City Manager Parrish explained to the Council that the Coast Guard is going let the City have the Fresnel 
Lens for four more years, in which time the City will try to come up with the funds to put it back 
together again. The Coast Guard will be paying for the disassembly and crating. The City will be 
responsible for the reassembly and storage costs. The climate control equipment for the lens will be 
around $5300. The Fresnel lens will be reassembled in the Ferndale museum. City Attorney Russ Gans 
explained that Congressman Thompson’s office is in full support of any kind of grant money that the City 
may seek. The Shining Light Foundation in collaboration with the City, The Chamber of Commerce, The 
Enterprise, The Fairgrounds and the Museum all played a role in the City being successful in negotiation 
of this MOU. A Council member had a question regarding the Fresnel lens and asked if the Coast Guard 
recognized the historical component that would be lost if the Fresnel lens left Ferndale. City Manager 
Parrish explained that it was not recognized as historically significant by the Coast Guard. Another 
question brought up by a Council member was a question as to if the City could meet the requirements 
in Section 11; creating an Interim Storage Facility for the Fresnel lens by September 9th, 2012. The City 
was certain that we would be able to reach this goal.  The City will be responsible for taking a reading of 
humidity and temperature of the Lens every day and that it will be sent to the Coast Guard on a yearly 
basis. City Attorney Russ Gans explained that the Coast Guard has not yet signed the MOU, but that the 
City has been assured that they will. MOTION: (Titus/Mierzwa). Approve Resolution 2012-27, 
Authorizing entry of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the United States Coast Guard for 
relocation of the Fresnel lens to the Ferndale Museum. Unanimous. 

 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:21PM. The next Regular City Council Meeting will be on September 6, 
2012. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

  

 

Brianna Smith 

Deputy City Clerk  

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 19 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Section 9 

CALL ITEMS 
 

These are items pulled from the consent agenda  
for discussion and a separate motion. 

 

Section 10 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

 

Section 11 

 

BUSINESS 

 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 20 

 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11a 

Agenda Item Title: Interview and selection of Council Member  

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Interview, select and appoint a City Councilmember to complete 

Niels Lorenzen’s term until November 4, 2014 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Interview, select and appoint a City Councilmember to complete Niels Lorenzen’s term until 

November 4, 2014. 

BACKGROUND 

Councilman Niels Lorenzen passed away on July 29, 2012. The vacancy was advertised after the 

meeting on August 2, 2012, with a closing date of August 29, 2012. 

Applicants are to be interviewed at today’s City Council meeting using pre-determined 

questions. The same questions will be asked of all candidates. There will be no public speakers 

in support of or in opposition to any applicant. 

Written ballot votes are to be submitted by each Councilmember to the City Clerk. The City 

Clerk will read aloud and identify each Councilmember and their vote. 

A majority vote of remaining Councilmembers is required to fill the position. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 21 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 22 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 23 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 24 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 25 

 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11b 

Agenda Item Title: Suddenlink Change of Ownership 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  

  
RECOMMEDATION: 
 
Approve the following supplemental budget; 
 
Revenue:  
 
1001411 Miscellaneous Revenue   $5,000.00 
 
Expenditure: 
 
10165055    Professional Services          $5,000.00 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City of Ferndale holds a franchise Agreement with Suddenlink Communications 
(Suddenlink). Suddenlink has recently informed us that the equity investors’ of its parent 
company, Cebridge Acquisition, have entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with 
Nespresso Acquisition.  
 
While the transaction will simply substitute existing equity investors with the new investors, it 
is our responsibility to: make sure the transition goes smoothly; review any compliance issues; 
and approve the change of control. 
 
We have been told that there will be no change locally, and that our community will continue 
to be served by Suddenlink.    
 
Suddenlink has sent Ferndale, and the other local franchise holders: the County of Humboldt, 
the City’s of Eureka, Arcata, Fortuna, Rio Dell, Trinidad and Blue Lake, each a $5,000 check to 
assist with the cost(s) associated with the changeover. Since all entities have existing contracts 
with Access Humboldt to manage our Franchise Agreements, it makes sense to pool our 
resources and hire AH and the Buske Consulting group to assist us with this project.   
 
 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 26 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no financial impact to the General Fund. It is proposed that the $5,000.00 check from 
Suddenlink, be used to hire Access Humboldt and the Buske Group to perform the audit, handle 
the sales transaction and franchise approval process on the City of Ferndale’s behalf. 
Attachments: 

1. July 24, 2012 Buske Group Proposal 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 27 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 28 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 29 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 30 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 31 

 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11c 

Agenda Item Title: Request for Green Curb in Front of the Red Front 
Store 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Per Council’s Direction 

 
 
RECOMMEDATION: 
 
As per Council’s direction 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Dennis Gorton, owner of The Red Front Store, 577 Main Street, has requested the City grant 
him a green zone in front of his business (see attached correspondence).   Ferndale City 
Ordinance describes a green zone as twenty (20) minute parking.  Mr. Gorton’s request is 
predicated on the following: 

 Red Front caters to “quick in and out” customers. 

 Red Front estimates an average of 225-250 customers per day. 

 Long term parking in front of his business impairs the quick in and out nature of his 
business. 

The downtown Ferndale business area currently has green zone (20 minute) parking on Main 
Street in front of the post office and North Valley Bank, on Brown Avenue in front of North 
Valley Bank’s ATM machine and on Shaw Avenue in front of Valley Lumber.  Customer traffic for 
these businesses is generally consistent with less than 20 minutes.  Mr. Gorton’s request 
appears consistent with other green zone parking areas within the downtown business area. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Paint:  $16.00 
City Staff: $16.00 
 
Attachment(s): Dennis Gorton letter. 
   Diagram 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 32 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 33 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 34 

 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11d 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2012-25 Approving the submittal of a 
Functional Classification Change for Local Streets 
and Roads to the State of California, Department 
of Transportation.  

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Approve Resolution 2012-25 Approving the submittal of a 

Functional Classification Change for Local Streets and Roads to 

the State of California, Department of Transportation. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 2012-25 Approving the submittal of a Functional Classification Change for 

Local Streets and Roads to the State of California, Department of Transportation.  

BACKGROUND 

The California Road System (CRS) Map is used to determine the Federal funding to maintain the 
roadways. A large majority of the Federal funding is reserved for roadways classified as Major 
Collectors and higher. If we do not update the map to reflect the actual conditions of our area, 

we would not be eligible for money reserved for maintenance (and other improvements) to 
thesystem within the City of Ferndale.



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 35 

 

RESOLUTION 2012-25 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 

APPROVES THE SUBMITTAL OF A FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION CHANGE FOR LOCAL STREETS 
AND ROADS TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
WHEREAS, incorporated cities are responsible for initiation requests for changes to the 
functional classification of streets and roads under their jurisdiction; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale receives State and Federal road improvement and maintenance 
funding based on the street and road designation; and  

WHEREAS, said Functional Classification Change as presented in Exhibit A, has been reviewed 
and examined by the City Council of Ferndale; and  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular 
meeting of the City Council of the City of Ferndale, held on the 6th  day of September 2012, by 
Council Member ___________________, who moved its adoption, which motion was duly 
seconded by Council Member ___________________, and the resolution adopted by the 
following vote: 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 6th day of September, 2012 by the following vote:  

AYES:       

NOES:      

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:    

                    ____________________ 

                Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk / Deputy City Clerk 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 36 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 37 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 38 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 39 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 40 

 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2012 Agenda Item Number 11e 

Agenda Item Title: Ordinance 2012-03, An ordinance amending 
Purchasing Ordinance 07-04, Section 6.01 

Presented By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required: Approve Second Reading of Ordinance 2012-03 

  

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Approve the Second Reading of and Adopt Ordinance 2012-03 An ordinance amending 

Purchasing Ordinance 07-04, Section 6.01.1(d) by title only, and direct staff to notice the 

Ordinance. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The City Council approved the first reading of Ordinance 2012-03 during the August Meeting. 

This is the Second reading and possible adoption of the ordinance.  

 

In the case of hiring an attorney, the current Purchasing Ordinance gave responsibility to the 

City Manager or the Purchasing Officer; however, our organizational chart designates the City 

Council as the only entity that can hire the attorney. It is therefore our recommendation that 

the following change be made to the current Purchasing Ordinance. 

 

ARTICLE 6: BIDDING PROCEDURE 
 

§6.01 General 
6.01.1 Purchases for supplies, equipment or services shall be by bid procedures 

pursuant to this ordinance except: 
a. During an emergency as determined by the City Manager or in his 

absence the Mayor, which requires an order be placed with the nearest 
or most readily available source necessary to provide an essential city-
supplied service affecting the public health, safety or welfare that 
would be delayed through the normal purchasing procedure in the 
procurement of the items or service; or 

b. When the Purchasing Officer determines that the supplies, service or 
equipment can be obtained from only one vendor; or 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 41 

 

c. When the City has a contract with another governmental unit to 
purchase a particular time on a cooperative basis; or 

d. When the City Council determines that it is in the best interest of the 
City to do so. When the Purchasing Officer finds that negotiations shall 
best serve the City due to the nature of the supplies, equipment or 
contractual service.  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 42 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING PURCHASING 
ORDINANCE 07-04 §6.01 PERTAINING TO BIDDING PROCEDURE 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
ARTICLE 1: SHORT TITLE, PURPOSE, SCOPE AND REPEAL 
§1.01 This ordinance shall be known and cited as “Amending Purchasing Ordinance.” 
§1.02 The purpose of this ordinance is to establish efficient procedures for the purchase of 

supplies, equipment and services; to secure supplies, equipment and services at the 
lowest possible cost commensurate with the quality needed; to exercise positive 
financial control over all purchases; and to clearly define authority for the purchasing 
function. 

§1.03 This ordinance shall cover procurement for all departments throughout the City of 
Ferndale. 
 

ARTICLE 2: STATUTORY AUTHORITY 
§2.01 Authority is pursuant to Government Code §§54201 through 54205 

 
ARTICLE 3: GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§3.01 The following change shall be made to section 6.01 of Purchasing Ordinance 07-04. 

The section noted shall read as follows 
 

 
ARTICLE 6: BIDDING PROCEDURE 
§6.01 General 

6.01.1 Purchases for supplies, equipment or services shall be by bid procedures 
pursuant to this ordinance except: 
a. During an emergency as determined by the City Manager or in his 

absence the Mayor, which requires an order be placed with the 
nearest or most readily available source necessary to provide an 
essential city-supplied service affecting the public health, safety or 
welfare that would be delayed through the normal purchasing 
procedure in the procurement of the items or service; or 

b. When the Purchasing Officer determines that the supplies, service or 
equipment can be obtained from only one vendor; or 

c. When the City has a contract with another governmental unit to 
purchase a particular time on a cooperative basis; or 

d. When the City Council determines that it is in the best interest of the 
City to do so. When the Purchasing Officer finds that negotiations 
shall best serve the City due to the nature of the supplies, equipment 
or contractual service. 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 43 

 

 
ARTICLE 4: ENACTMENT 
 
§4.01 SEVERABILITY CLAUSE: The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this 

Ordinance and each section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause and phrase 
thereof, irrespective of the fact that one or more of such sections, subsections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases might be declared invalid, unconstitutional 
or void. Should any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance be declared invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of any 
other section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase; and if this Ordinance 
or any portion thereof should be held to be invalid on one ground, but valid on 
another, it shall be construed that the valid ground is the one upon which said 
Ordinance or such portion thereof was enacted.  

§4.02 Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the date of 
its enactment. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of September, 2012 on the following vote: 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk   Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
 

First Reading: August 2, 2012 

Second Reading: September 6, 2012 

Enacted: October 6, 2012 
 

 
 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 44 

 

Section 12 

CORRESPONDENCE 

Correspondence Files are available for review at City Hall during 
regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, 9am to 4pm. 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 45 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 46 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 47 

 

 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 48 

 

Section 13 

REPORTS 
 

Section 13a:  City Manager Staff Report 
 
CITY MANAGER: 
 
Meetings:  
 

 Kiwanis meeting 1st and 3rd Tuesday of the month at 4:30 pm 

 Meeting in Russ Park with Gerald Silva, David Yarrington, and CM regarding access to Park 

 Meeting with Karen Clower ( Aug 1st) of the County regarding the use of City Hall for budgetary meetings 
in March 

 City Council-  August 2nd  – 7:00-8:30 pm  

 Meeting with Johnny’s Flooring at library regarding carpeting replacement (Aug 7th) 

 Design Review- August 9th 8:30 am 

 HMRA meeting- August 9th – 4:30- 6:00 pm 

 SRWC meeting- August 10th - 2:00-5:00 pm 

 Humboldt Transit Authority- August 13th meeting to discuss bus service to Fair from Fernbridge 

 RCEA  Board meeting – August 20th -  3:15-5:00 pm  

 City Manager meeting- August 16th - 3:00-5:00 pm  

 Meeting with Donna Chambers (RCD) regarding Mike Thompson and Jimmy Smith event on Sept 22 

 SRWC – August 28th- 2:00-5:00 pm 

 Planning Commission meeting  August 29 7:00 – 8:30 pm 

 Met with PW regarding daily routine 

 Pickup mail every morning 

 Met with City Managers and CAO to go over the process of transfer of new ownership of Suddenlink. 
The group agreed that a continuation with our relationship with the Buske group to negotiate for our 
group would be in the best interest of all of us. I will bring this to the Council for approval at the next 
regular meeting. 

 ERD contract negotiations: Discussions with Karen Smith of ERD to talk about revenue sharing as part of 
our recycling contract. I have had a number of conversations with other cities who have this type of 
agreement which allows a community to improve on its recycling program, while at the same time 
sharing in the financial success of the program in order to keep rates as low as possible. Karen is working 
up a proposal that will address the present inequity. I have also had discussions with HWMA personnel 
going over various solid waste issues. We also have had a number of discussions related to extending 
our green waste pickup agreement for one more year. 

 Daily meetings with chief regarding police activities and community safety issues. 

 Conversations with Wastewater operators regarding compliance related, personnel related issues and 
scheduling. Also many sludge related alternatives and guidance to reduce associated weight and costs. 

 Daily interaction with Staff regarding workload.  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 49 

 

 Numerous conversations regarding Salt River Project with Watershed Council members, RCD 
representatives, council members and citizens. We continue work with property owners in effort to get 
support for the project. We now have all property owners on board and are meeting with Coastal 
Committee in hopes of getting the development permit. 

 Frequent conversations with John Driscoll and Congressmen Thompson representatives and Coast 
Guard (CG) representatives regarding the MOU to retain Fresnel lens at Fairgrounds while giving us time 
to secure funding to reassemble lens in the museum. The Coast Guard has plans to start disassembly 
around September 9th, with that process taking around a week. The City and Shining Light Foundation 
(SLF) will have four years according to the MOU to raise the required funds. It has been a long process 
negotiating with the CG in an effort to keep the lens in our community where it has resided for over 
sixty-three years.  The Shining Light Foundation which is comprised of the City, County Fair, Chamber of 
Commerce, the Museum, and the Ferndale Enterprise should be commended for its time and efforts to 
retain this iconic artifact which is part of our historic fiber. We also had numerous conversations with 
SLF members regarding the preparation of temporary housing building to make sure it was compliant 
with CG guidelines. 

 Numerous meetings with Gerald Silva related to possible agreement on Russ Park access. I have recently 
met with Gerald and our surveyor, David Yarrington to go over some very interesting and creative ideas 
surrounding the access to our back entrance to Russ Park. I have advanced this idea to county planning 
representatives who have indicated that they did not see any barriers and that an application to them 
would be our next step. There are a number of issues we are still sorting through, however we believe 
that we will bring this subject to the council in coming months. 

 Numerous meetings with individual Councilmen and the mayor regarding City issues.  

 Daily morning meetings with Public Works to go over daily activities and guidance on projects. Recently 
our focus beyond routine maintenance has been centered on the irrigation around City Hall and the City 
Green, and our annual Francis Creek inspection procedure. In regards to the creek, the report was that it 
was in better condition than we thought it would be. There were several properties that we needed to 
send letters to and we are working with all these individuals to resolve issues. We have been trying to 
find the most cost efficient way to irrigate the City Hall grass without the discoloration of our building or 
our benches. Crew Chief Miranda will be giving me a report soon. We are also planning in conjunction 
with Garden Club and Village Club changes and improvements outside and inside City Hall in regards to 
keeping the sprinkler system off the building. Met with Village Club members to go over a grant 
application that would renovate kitchen, chamber, and stage. That draft grant application will be shown 
to council before we submit. 

 Sculpture in City Green was taken away at the end of April and we are trying to replace with a student 
sculpture from HSU. I am working with Sondra Schwetman of the Art Department in an effort to start 
some type of rotational exhibit. She is excited about the possibilities and is in the process of putting a 
proposal together that will possibly allow the City to have a sculpture from HSU students on a rotational 
basis. We are looking forward to participating with HSU on this project. Sondra has sent me some ideas 
and plans to go over and I am in the process of completing that analysis and will be getting back in touch 
with her with comments. I am scheduled to meet with her on September 5th and hopefully we can agree 
on the scope of the project. 

 The Sign Ordinance Committee is making good progress. The current ordinance and procedures are still 
in effect and businesses must still go through Design Review and procedures for placement of signs and 
related issues. Staff is in the process of writing a letter to business district updating our progress and 
reminding them that there were non-compliant situations before we started this process and that 
although there may be changes in what is and is not allowed, we will be enforcing whatever the Council 
approves at the end of this process.   



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 50 

 

 Discussions with City Planner regarding Design Review and planning issues.  Planning Commission 
continues to move through the Safety Element. 

 We have successfully initiated in conjunction/collaboration with Leland Rock and Gerald Silva a 
monitoring program to watch and record any movement of last year’s slide area. This area looks stable 
and we will continue to monitor. Tom Stevens is monitoring the torrent for the City and has reported no 
movement so far and he is pleased with what he sees to this point. 

 Numerous discussions and conversations with our engineers regarding our sludge pressing and removal 
process. I have met with and spoken with both the Rio Dell city manager and the Fortuna city manager 
and we are working toward some sort of agreement that will allow us to depose of our sludge through 
them until we have a more permanent agreement with Rio Dell after they have their new dryer system 
installed. We are continuing the process of updating many of our personnel policies and job 
descriptions. 

 Numerous discussions with City Planner regarding Design Review and planning issues. Most discussions 
have revolved around the General Plan updates, Safety Element progress, Design Review procedures, 
various applications and specific agenda items for the DRC, PC, and the CC. The PC recommended to the 
CC that we undertake the Safety Element next and the CC approved of that strategy, and the Planning 
Commission has started the process of updating the Safety Element and will continue in that effort for 
about a year before they come to the City Council with a recommendation. 

 Numerous discussions with our Planner and City Inspector and staff about the Kinetic building 
downtown that is having the stucco taken off. The City Inspector approved an emergency demolition 
permit to remove the stucco at the request of their structural engineer. The building will then apply for 
building permit to address whatever structural issues it may have. The project will go through Design 
Review to consider what type of CEQA process or procedure will be appropriate. Although the 
businesses in this area are affected it is clear that there is a need for structural repairs to this historically 
significant building. We are very happy that this property owner is going through the expense and 
process to preserve this building. 

 Numerous conversations with the new Gingerbread property owner and manager regarding renovation 
plans, ideas and design review applications. They have made great headway and the building is truly 
being brought back to match its iconic status and contribute as a resource for many decades.  

 Spoke with several pastors in the town who expressed an interest in helping put a new coat of paint on 
City Hall. We are also intending to replace gutters before painting. I also intend to repair the windows 
around City Hall that are in need of rehabilitation. I intend to accomplish this before we paint. Inside the 
council chambers we have improvements to the stage area, including the sound system and curtains. I 
have received bids on curtains and gutters. Sound Advice is giving us a bid on the sound system, which 
will replace our system with new microphones for the council, staff and public, and will also include all 
amplifiers and speaker systems. They will also look at some type of acoustic design change for best 
performance of the system. If we are able to garner the funds for these improvements we will be able to 
consider having the capability to have certain venues carried on our local Access Humboldt cable 
network. I will try to bundle this project for grant funding. 

 The City Managers group is working with Access Humboldt to analyze the requirements we need to go 
through as a result of the change in ownership of Suddenlink. 

 Numerous conversations with resident that lives beside E Street and put up a fence that shortened the 
dead-end street by about thirty feet in 2000. The City received a complaint that asked about this as it 
related to the fire departments need as a drafting site. I checked that out and it did not seem to be a 
issue. However the Chair of the Planning Commission and the Mayor both asked me to look into the 
situation and staff has researched this and will put it in front of the Planning Commission to discuss in a 
public forum. The Planning Commission had this in front of them last week and had a few things they 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 51 

 

wanted staff to look into before moving it to Council. The day after Mr. Hooley contacted me and said 
that he would rather take the fence down than see the City spend its money on questions through the 
attorney. 
 

FINANCE MANAGER: 

Projects: 
 

 Payroll 

 Accounts Payable 

 Accounts Receivable 

 Answer Phones/Greet Visitors 

 Purchase Various Supplies 

 Sent New Fiscal Budget to Auditor 

 Month end Reports 

 Send out new Transient Occupancy Tax letters 

 Social Security Report 

 

CITY CLERK: 

Meetings  

 Daily meetings with Office Manager and/or City Manager regarding work schedule. 

 Design Review Meeting – July 26, 2012 

 City Council Meeting – August 2, 2012 

 
Projects 

 Assist with counter and phones. 

 Pick up mail, copy, distribute and file. 

 Printed copy of record of Planning Commission action regarding Lot Line Adjustment, entered on 
Land Use Database, filed folder. Received information from Land Surveyor, emailed Planwest to 
finalize procedure, passed information to City Engineer for finalization. 

 Printed business cards for Mayor Farley. 

 At City Manager’s direction, prepared letter for Building Inspector to sign regarding façade removal 
on Main Street building. 

 At City Manager’s direction, prepared Ordinance 2012-03 Amending Purchase Ordinance Section 
6.01 for August Agenda. 

 Organized notes from past week into follow-up schedule. 

 Researched Government Code and Municipal Council Vacancy Policy regarding City Council Vacancy. 
Discussed with City Manager. 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 52 

 

 Prepared letters and envelopes for Finance Director regarding Humboldt County Tourism Business 
Improvement District. Revised T.O.T. Form for inclusion with letter. 

 Talked with CM and City Inspector as well as owner of building regarding damage that needs to be 
fixed.  

 219 Francis Street; at CM’s direction assembled information from the National Register of Historic 
Places and out of book “Doors of Ferndale”.  Compose letter to property owner regarding 
procedure. 

 Found civil code referring to adverse possession. 

 Reviewed MOU and sent it to group that uses the Community Center asking for a signature. 

 Transcribed Design Review Minutes for the July 26, 2012 meeting. Printed minutes that had been 
approved for signature and filing. 

 Worked with Audrey Hanks who was here conducting a Possessory Interest audit of our rental 
agreements for city facilities for the County of Humboldt. 

 Filed Officer Adam Stricker’s Oath of Office. 

 Transcribed City Council Meeting Minutes for the August 2, 2012 meeting. Printed July minutes that 
had been approved, signed and filed. Uploaded to the webpage. 

 Figured, faxed and filed Fee Report to the Department of Conservation for 4/1/12-6/30/12. 

 Figured, faxed and filed Report of Building or Zoning Permits issued for new privately-owned 
housing units. 

 Continue to fine-tune the Community Center Rental Policy, including working with Public Works for 
a before and after checklist for the Community Center. 

 Election duties: Received and filed nomination papers for Stuart Titus, Mayor; Ken Mierzwa, City 
Councilman; Dan Brown, City Councilman. Took nomination signatures to the County Elections office 
to check validity of signatures. Received and filed nomination papers for Kenneth Weller, Mayor; 
faxed paperwork to the County Elections Office. Copied and mailed original Form 700’s to the Fair 
Political Practices Commission, as required. Answered questions from the media as to candidates. 

 Worked with the City Manager on a letter to applicant to explain procedure for work in the Historic 
District / Design Review District. 

 Working with member using the Community Center to have an MOU as well as an application form 
signed and on file, along with a security deposit. 

 Reviewed Design Review meeting packet that Deputy City Clerk had prepared. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 53 

 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK: 

MEETINGS: 

 Daily meetings with City Manager to discuss various office issues 

 Coordinated with City Manager and City Planner on planning and developmental projects. 

 Regular Design Review Meeting- June 28, 2012 

 Planning Commission Meeting- July 18, 2012 

 Special Design Review Meeting- July 19, 2012 
 

 

PROJECTS: 

 Assembled Regular Design Review Agenda/Packet for June 28, 2012 Meeting. 

 Assembled City Council Agenda/Packet for July 5, 2012 Meeting. 

 Assembled Special Design Review Agenda/Packet for July 18, 2012 Meeting. 

 Assembled Planning Commission Agenda/Packet for July 19, 2012 Meeting. 

 Posted Regular Design Review Agenda; uptown/at city hall. 

 Posted Special Design Review Agenda; uptown/at city hall. 

 Posted Planning Commission Agenda; uptown/at city hall. 

 Posted City Council Agenda; uptown/at city hall/online. 

 Set up for Planning Commission Meeting, 

 Set up for Sign Committee Meeting. 

 Typed Minutes for the Special Design Review Meeting- July 19, 2012. 

 Typed Minutes for Planning Commission Meeting- July 18, 2012. 

 Uploaded PC video. 

 Business Licenses. 

 Dog License. 

 City Hall/Community Center Rentals. 

 Electronic Deposits. 

 Cash Deposits. 

 Field Observation Reports 

 Counter work/Answer Phones/Messages 
 

 
Land Use, Building and Encroachment Permits Issued 
 

B1229 730 5
th
 St Water heater 

B1230 

1289 

Madison Windows/Replace Steps 

B1231 927 Main 4 external light poles 

B1232 1390 Rose Re-roof 

DR1217 1085 Main Painting house 

DR1218 820 Herbert Re-roof 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 54 

 

 

CITY PLANNER: 

Meetings, Planning & Coordination: 

 Coordinated with City Manager, City Clerk, and Deputy City Clerk on planning and development 
projects.  

 Continued review of Sign Ordinance Update materials and progress. 

 Coordinated with City Engineer and City Clerk on 1101 Main Street Lot Line Adjustment 
finalization and timeline.  Advised realtor of timeline.   

 Continued coordination on alleviating issues stemming from Russ Park access across private 
land.   

 Reviewed letter from Ferndale resident requesting that the City grant a revocable encroachment 
permit for a fence in a public right of way.  Advised City Manager of estimated cost.     

 Attended 7/26 Design Review meeting and presented Design Review Manual Preparation Scope 
and Staff Report as well as Design Review Use Permit Application Process revisions and Staff 
Report.   

 Wrote and mailed application incomplete letter to applicant for stucco removal at 580 Main St. 

 Coordinated with City Clerk on process for notifying resident of Design Review Combining Zone 
violation for removal of a contributing feature from a listed building in the Historic District.   

 Responded to property owner questions about the potential to subdivide property located on 
Main Street; corresponded by email and phone to answer additional questions related to zoning 
standards.  

 Responded to property owner questions regarding converting an existing structure on the 
property into a dwelling space.  Coordinated with City Clerk to advise resident on options.   

 Coordinated with City Clerk and City Manager to draft letter to Ferndale resident outlining City 
requirements for a building permit for stucco removal in the Historic District. 

 
Projects: 

 General Plan Update—Prepared General Plan Safety Element Settings & Context and Geologic 
and Seismic Hazards chapters for presentation at 8/29 Planning Commission meeting.  
Contacted Troy Nicolini and arranged for him to make a brief presentation on Geologic Hazards 
during meeting.  Continued agency coordination and presentation scheduling for future 
meetings.     

 Design Review Use Permit Application Process – Attended 7/26 Design Review Committee 
meeting and presented staff report and revised application process with revisions marked and 
explained.  Made additional changes to application process as directed by Committee and 
prepared staff report for 8/23 meeting.  

 
 

 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 55 

 

CITY ENGINEER: 

Sewer Projects  – 
 

o Investigating permit requirements and estimated cost for a sludge storage/drying building 
 

o Working on a proposed capital improvement report (sewer) 

 Met with Doug and discussed scope of projects to be included and priority ranking. 
Working on updated cost estimate and map for DRAFT submittal.  

 

Pedestrian Improvement Project -  
 

o Herbert Street: (Phase 1) 

 Project is complete 

 Finalizing Project Close Out  
 

o Rose Street: (Phase 2) 

 $250,000.00 has been granted to the City of Ferndale for Transportation Enhancement 
(pedestrian improvements) on Rose Street.    

 Design development and preparation of construction documents should begin in 
September upon receiving the Expense Authorization (EA)/Finance letter. Cal Trans 
meeting in July (for authorization of funds) was cancelled. 

 

Applications –  
 

o Mr. Willis Hadley - Francis Street Project:  Project started without a permit.  Referral sent to 
California Department of Fish and Game for drainage work.  DF&G requested additional 
consultation with the US Army Corps of Engineers. 

 

o Reviewed Status of 5th and Arlington Subdivision Expiration date. 
 

o Reviewing status of Beal LLA 
 

General Engineering –  
 

o Looking into solutions for 5th Street Flooding in front of Navy House Parcel 

 Reviewed existing easements, utilities and prepared alternatives and cost estimate to 
meet the 25-year design flow criteria 

 Analyzed basin area conditions and updated the information from the 2004 Drainage 
Master Plan Update. Scheduled to meet with the Drainage Review Committee on 
September 13th to discuss possible solution. 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 56 

 

 

o Working on a Project Study Report for resurfacing Berding Street 

 Preparing a Pavement Condition survey of the existing surface 

 Preparing a repair/maintenance report based on the Pavement Condition Index 

 Preparing possible solutions and cost estimates 
 

o Discussed results of the Project Initiation Document for the intersection of 4th and Shaw 
Ave.  

 Preparing Design plans and construction/bid documents for construction. 
 

o Working on a proposed capital improvement report (roads and drainage) 

 Met with Tim and discussed scope of projects to be included and priority ranking. 
Working on updated cost estimate and map for DRAFT submittal. 

 
o Working on Roadway Functional Classification change 

 Completed the CRS map changes 

 Completed the Functional Classification request form 

 Completed the Resolution to City Council 

 Received approval letter from HCAOG 

 Waiting for City Council approval before final submittal to Cal Trans 
 

o Working on 25’ Francis Creek Setback Map 

 Completed the GIS map showing Francis Creek and the 25’ offset and zoning 

 Identified the potential lots affected 
 

o Submitted final SWPPP and NOT for NCWQCB. 
o Wetland Assessment preparation for compliance with permits and California Coastal 

Commission 
o Review opportunities for new transportation projects funded by State or Federal sources 
o Research and correspondence with City and County staff regarding Francis Creek sediment 

deposition and dredging. 
o Looking into grading and drainage at west end of Fern Street 
o Coordinated with Plan West for potential Stream Side Management Ordinance 
o Development of 2012/2013 Office of City Engineer Budget 

 
Meetings and Committees –  

o HCAOG  
o Attend TAC meetings 
 

Reporting and Correspondence –  
 

o Prepared monthly staff report 
o General correspondence and meetings with City Staff  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 57 

 

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 

 CPO worked on Sewer Tax audit and Assessor report. 

 Sent numerous emails to HWMA regarding diversion numbers in preparation for completing the 
annual recycling report. 

 CPO complete and submit annual recycling report to the state 

 OIT assisted operator Coppini with moving irrigation pipes 

 Numerous correspondence with manufacturer of pond motor operated valve regarding failure and 
warranty replacement. 

 CPO and CM working with Orick CSD regarding old generator. 

 OIT Ivey replace belts on blower #3 

 Contacted Mobley construction about repairing asphalt patch behind elementary school 

 Flygt rep in to discuss maintenance contract for influent and pond pumps 

 Eel River Disposal advised the City that they could no longer take our sludge mixed with solid waste. 
Staff is looking into several different options for disposing of our sludge. During this time, there 
were no dewatering events since the last report. ERD supplied the City with a 20 yd roll-off to store 
our dried sludge while the first stage of the sludge drying building is completed. Staff has contacted 
Waste Management, who issues Anderson Landfill’s permit, and has begun the process of setting up 
a profile with them. Until we are able to find a long term solution, ERD will pick up our single-stream 
sludge and deliver it to Anderson after a short testing period to confirm that out biosolids meet their 
standards. 

 Numerous calls to Waste Management in Redding regarding taking our sludge 

 Operator Coppini and OIT Ivey perform routine maintenance on screw press. 

 Met with Hank Brenard and Dennis Ryan regarding biosolids handling. 

 Ride-along with Jim Brewer to look at burm that was installed to minimize flooding on Pt. Kenyon 
West of the effluent site. 

 Motor Operated Valve (MOV) from the pond has an issue with sealing on close. Contacted 
contractor to look at it. Manufacture ordered new valve which will be replaced by the contractor. 
Should be repaired by end of August 

 Trouble shoot MOV from pond and get data off nameplate for manufacturer. 

 CPO gave tour of plant to operators from Fort Bragg 

 Boom truck in to clear influent pumps. 

 Staff performed process tests to assist in the operation of the facility. 

 Operator Coppini manage biosolids handling with turning and mixing to get maximum dry. 

 Operator Coppini contacted Aeromod regarding waste time issues in the PLC 

 OIT Ivey perform major scrub down and cleaning of belt press 

 Staff clean up and haul away debris from effluent site in preparation for drying building construction 

 Mow and weedwack along road adjacent to facility 

 Clean filter hoods 

 Contact Block Environmental regarding the Copper study 

 Contacted Del Oro corporate regarding commercial water usage report for tax info. 

 New sewer hookup at 1292 Ambrossini Ln 

 Fixed irrigation gun at wetlands 

 CPO discussed capital improvement plans with Manhard to coordinate any work being done on the 
roads. 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 58 

 

 Discuss with contractor and realtor about lot split at 1101 Main Street. Current upper lateral crosses 
over into the new lot that was split from the parcel. Advised realtor that the existing house will need 
to install a new upper and lower lateral to the main and cap off existing lateral to be available for 
future service when the other lot is developed. 

 Sent copper data to Lisa 

 CPO attended all day CWEA Fall training conference at Redwood Acres. 

 Submitted a request to the Regional Board to change the copper limit in our NPDES permit. The 
Water Effects Ratio study that was completed by Block showed that the limit could be increased by 
nearly 3 times. When the limits were established, only lab water was used to determine the effects 
copper has on aquatic life. Because the water is so pure, without any influence of organics, aquatic 
life has a less survival rate. The WER uses actual effluent to do the same study. Since effluent has 
suspended solids and other influences, copper can adhere to that matter more and less to aquatic 
life. 

 System wide manhole inspection performed 

 Took composite samples from dried biosolids in storage for sampling to determine the compliance 
for disposal at the Anderson Landfill. Should take three weeks to receive results. 

 Operator Coppini discuss plan with ERD for use of 20 yd roll-off for temporary storage of dried 
biosolids 

 Continued to work through some process issues at the plant. Flows are decreasing and therefore the 
biological process is changing. 

 CPO met with reps from Fortuna Iron to discuss the construction of a small, portable hoist that can 
be used for removing the small influent pumps for routine maintenance. 

 Control strategies regarding the influent pumps and UV control seem to be working as energy costs 
have decreased 20% from previous month. 

 Completed and submitted monthly electronic annual report for the Regional Board  

 The facility received a total of 19 septic dumps from Roto Rooter & Wyckoff’s totaling 26,050 gallons 
and generating $4,329 in revenue for the facility.  

 Plant DATA updated on SEMS software 

 CPO attended 2 CWEA board meetings in Eureka 

 Monthly eSMR was submitted 

 Staff performed routine process tests in our lab. 

 Prepared monthly sample containers 

 Filled out POs for monthly invoices 

 Monthly samples picked up by NCL 

 Operator Coppini performed general maintenance around the facility 

 Operator Coppini filed online SSO report.  

 Operator Coppini performed the normal in-house weekly and monthly testing and scheduled lab 
work to be done. 

 No violations were reported during the month 

 Total flows through the collection system were 6.893 MG. Of that, 2.887 MG was pumped to the 
equalization pond 

 Influent flows that were treated through the facility totaled 4.066 MG for the month of July. The 
average flow was .131 MGD.  

 Irrigation flows totaled 3.566 MG for the month of July. The average flow was .128 MGD. 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 59 

 

PUBLIC WORKS: 

CITY PROPERTY 

 Firemen’s Park 
o Routine Maintenance, i.e. Mowing Park and Baseball Field. 
o Routine daily walk through to pick-up garbage.  

 Park Restrooms 
o Routinely cleaned every day of the week including weekends. 

 Russ Park 
o Routine maintenance: Pulling out trash from trash & recycle bins as needed. 
o Picked-up loose garbage from Russ Park. 

 Town Hall 
o Routine mowing and weedeating 
o Pull out trash daily 
o Cut the hedge. 
o Changed out lights in the lounge.  

 Library 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 

 City Parking Lot 
o Picked up garbage – Routinely as least once a week unless otherwise warranted. 
o Restriped lot – painted parking stripes. 

 Main Street Restrooms 
o Routine maintenance: Daily cleaning and stocking of Main Street Restrooms – 7 days a week. 

 Community Center 
o Routine checking of CC when the facility is rented before and after. 
o Showing CC to potential renters as needed 
o Replumming down spouts and adding length to the down spouts on the back of the building. 
o Received bid for replacement of the community kitchen and relocating the roof vents. 
o Bid awarded to Cory Nunes Construction. He will start ASAP. 
o Spoke to Trevor Christiansen about locking up after the Zumba class. 
o Fixing bathroom fan… ordered new fan. 
o Roto Rooter pulled two of the three toilets and reset on new rings and two new sloan valves. 
o Called Fortuna Glass for broken window. 
o Power washed the steps to the kitchen. 

 Police Department 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 
o Painted stripes in parking lot. 
o Mowed alley behind PD. 

 Scout Hall - Routine mowing and weedeating  
 

 Roadsides - Routine mowing and weed eating 

 Working on the creek and meeting with property owners regarding creek questions. 

 Met with Ron Smith regarding the creek. 
 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 60 

 

STREETS AND SIDEWALKS AND STORMDRAINS 

 Routine maintenance: Regular maintenance of roadside mowing. 

 Routine picking up trash at the edge of town. 

 Routine maintenance: Continuing to pick-up piles around town as resident call and request removal. 

 Routine maintenance: Sweep Main St., Monday, Wednesday and Friday mornings. 

 Marked out USA locates throughout town. – When needed. 

 Removing piles. 

 Continuing to patch the roads as needed. 

 Painted curbs throughout town preparing for the fair. At high school. At 5th St. At Van Ness. At Main 
St Post Office. At Six Rivers Bank on Main St.  At Fire Dept. At Valley Lumber. Foot bridge at Main 
and Van Ness + More. 

 Cutting overgrown vegetation on Bluff St. 

 Graded the sides of the road on Bluff St. for water runoff. 

 6 Hours Ford Tractor 6610 – Mowing roadsides 

 Removed dead deer off of Watson St. 

 Met with Manhardt regarding priority list on roads and drainage. 

 Painted bridge and rails on Van Ness. 

 Painted cross walks on California and Van Ness. 

 Mowed Wildcat entry road. 

 Painted Elementary cross walks on Shaw Ave. 

 Painted white curb at West Shaw. 

 Removed debris from all the drains and grates around town. 
 
VEHICLE / EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 

 Routine monthly maintenance and weekly maintenance on frequently used equipment. 

 Repaired flat tire on the dump truck. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 Routine paperwork. 

 Dealing with daily work orders as residents call. 

 Viewed Safety videos. 

 Went to Bay West to pick up supplies. 

 

POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

Officer Lee Haldorson has been proceeding through his Field Training Program on the weekends. 

Chief Smith attended Kiwanis meetings/functions. 

Chief Smith attended the monthly LECAH meeting. 

Chief Smith attended the monthly Community Corrections Partnership Executive Committee. 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 61 

 

Provided a tour of the police department and police patrol units to children from the Ferndale Children’s 
Center. 

Provided cones, signage, traffic control and extra patrol for the Humboldt County Fair and related 
activities. 

Police Statistics – July 2012 

SERIOUS CRIMES Number Cleared 

Homicide 0   

Rape 0   

Robbery 0   

Larceny 2  0 

Assault 0 0 

Burglary 1   

Vehicle Theft 0  

  

TOTAL 3 

SECONDARY CRIMES 0 

Calls for Service 30 

Reports Written 7 

  

  

Traffic Citations 2 

Other Citations 0 

Parking Citations 0 

Warnings 29 

ARRESTS 0 

AGENCY ASSISTS 12 

TRAFFIC COLLISIONS 1 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 62 

 

 

Section 13b: Commissions, Committees and Other 

C i t y  o f  F e r n d a l e ,  H u m b o l d t  C o u n t y ,  C a l i f o r n i a  U S A  
Minutes for Planning Commission Meeting of August 29, 2012 

 
 
Call to Order: Chair Jorgen Von Frausing-Borch called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 
7:02pm.  Commissioners Dan Brown, Uffe Christiansen, Trevor Harper, and Lino Mogni along with staff 
City Manager Jay Parrish, Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith, and City Planner Melanie Rheaume .Those in 
attendance pledged allegiance to the flag. MOTION: (Brown/Christiansen). The July 18, 2012 minutes 
were unanimously approved. 
 
Modifications to the agenda: City Manger Parrish asked that Item 6.3 the Revocable Easement for E-
Street be moved to the first item. 
 
No Public Comment. 
 
Recvocable Easement for E-Street:  City Planner Melanie Rheaume briefly gave a background on the E- 
Street Revocable Easement. She Let the Commissioners know that the applicant had asked the City to 
wave the fee for the Easement. It was added that since this issue was brought forth by City officials that 
it didn’t seem fair for the applicant to pay. City Planner Melanie Rheaume asked that the PC 
Commissioner look over the draft easement. A Commissioner asked how this issue affects the Fosters, 
who also use the fence. City staff explained that the Fosters were in full support in keeping the fence, 
but have not requested anything. Mr Hooley gave some background on the fence. He explained to the 
Commissioners that he had installed the fence after he had some conversations with then Public Works 
Director Mr. Taubitz in 2001. He had asked Mr. Taulbitz if he needed permission from the City to clean 
up the area and install a fence between his property and the Foster’s property. His informal response 
was that he saw no need to get formal approval. Ron Smith, who lives at the West end of E-St who could 
not be at the meeting expressed to Mr. Hooley that he has no concerns with the fence and would like to 
see it left up. A Commissioner had a question to as who the owner of E-Street was? It was explained that 
The City is the owner E-Street. It was asked why the City doesn’t deem themselves the owner of the 
fence? Staff explained that the Revocable Easement puts the onus off the City. Commissioners had 
concern about the legal aspects of the Revocable Easement and asked if it had been looked over by legal 
counsel. It was explained that it had not been, but that this document had been used by other cities and 
had been altered to fit the situation. All Commissioners agreed that they wouldn’t feel comfortable 
recommending this to Council as is and that they would like more legal information and would like to 
know more about Adverse Possession and its role. MOTION: (Brown/Mogni) Tabled until legal advice is 
obtained. Unanimous 
 
Geological and Tsunami Hazards and Safety Presentation-Troy Nicolini:  Will be rescheduled at a later 
date. 
 
Safety Element Update:   It was asked that Study Sessions at 6:30 were reinstated do to speakers that 
will be giving presentations at the September, October, November and February meetings. City Planner 
Melanie Rheaume gave an update on the Safety Element. She went over The Setting and Context section 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 63 

 

which includes identification and overview of geological, storm, flood, fire and other potential hazards in 
the Ferndale Planning area. The next section that was looked at was the Geological and Seismic Hazards 
and the Potential Liquefaction Area of the Ferndale Planning area. Figures for Soil Instability and the 
Tsunami Evacuation area were looked at. City Planner Melanie Rheaume also briefly discussed 
Acceptable risk and Emergency Preparedness. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be September 19,  2012. The meeting was adjourned at 8:09PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Brianna Smith 
Deputy City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 64 

 

 
City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

 Design Review Minutes for the 07/26/12 8:30am meeting 

 

Vice Chairman Dane Cowan opened the meeting at 8:40 a.m. Committee Members Michael Bailey, 
Michael Sweeney, and Lino Mogni were present along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish, City Planner 
George Williamson and City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum. Chair Dan Brown was absent. Modifications: 
Committee member comments was moved in front of 5c. 
 
MOTION: (Bailey/Sweeney). Approve minutes from the 6/21/12, 6/28/12 and 7/19/12 meetings as 
presented. Unanimous. 
 
Design Review Process - City Planner George Williamson explained that language on page 6 of the 
packet came from the Zoning Ordinance. Michael Bailey had a concern with page 9, middle “Consult 
with City Staff to determine if your project requires a Design Review Use Permit application.” He was 
also concerned about paint colors, the definition of an emergency repair. Planner Williamson made note 
of the changes. Also discussed is having a letter instead of a call to the applicant informing them of the 
acceptance of their application so that there is a paper trail. Staff pointed out the space at the bottom of 
the application where it provides a space to write the date the applicant was notified, as well as a space 
to mark when the project is finaled. There was more discussion about the notification process. Vice 
Chair Cowan suggested a disclaimer on the application that if the applicant changes the approved 
project, it will have to come back before the Design Review Committee. Also discussed were before and 
after photos; a list of some of the things the applicant may need to present with the application, not 
needed is the requirement of a plot plan when the footprint is not changing. Committee member 
Sweeney suggested wording that staff determines if CEQA is necessary, the project would go to 
Planwest, then to the Design Review Committee. He also thought check boxes on the application would 
be a good idea. There was further discussion on the CEQA process. Planner Williamson will make 
changes and bring back before the committee. 
 
Design Review Manual: Planner Williamson discussed the preparation scope and noted that the 
preliminary work would be done by the Committee; Planwest would not become involved until Task 6. A 
user guide will be a “bible” for staff and the community. Williamson left a copy of the Samoa manual for 
review. 
 
Committee Comments: Planner Williamson explained that the Historic and Cultural Resources Element 
was adopted by the City Council in February. The approved element should be online for reference on 
our web page. 
 
Final Procedure for DR Applications- Committee member Bailey brought several applications forward 
that he wanted to discuss with the group; 

1. 1238 Main Street; Bailey felt the contractor did a poor job of joining the new siding to the old, 
and that the paint does not match. Vice Chair Cowan asked if the applicant had done what was 
applied for, and if so, to sign off on it, as the committee has no control over the contractor that 
is chosen by the applicant. Bailey signed off. 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 65 

 

2. 460 Main Street; replace awning signs. Bailey felt there were too many other signs, no street 
number noted on building, and a flashing neon open sign; however, he signed off on what had 
been requested by the applicant. 

3. 393 Main Street; remove built on lean-to and eventually build a second exit from upstairs of 
house. The project has not been completed due to lack of money. He questioned if there is an 
expiration date on the application. 

4. 1400C Main Street; landscaped sign had previously been approved, other signs not. Bailey 
remarked that the neon closed sign shines all night, neon open sign in window, other signs 
removed as stated, and signed off on it. 

5. 358 Main Street – paint bare white spot above store. Never completed and won’t be. Remove 
application from list. 
 

In addition, the following applications were taken by the committee members: Dane Cowan: 1117 1103 
1019 1102 1018; Lino Mogni: 1003 0916 0914; Michael Bailey: 0912 0910 0911 0909 1213 1214; Michael 
Sweeney: 1005 1009 1010 1013 1014. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:10AM. The next meeting regular meeting will be August 23, 2012. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 
City Clerk 

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 66 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 08/9/12 8:30am meeting 

 
Chairman Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:33 a.m. Committee Members Michael Sweeney, Lino 
Mogni, Michael Bailey and Dane Cowan along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish and Deputy City Clerk 
Brianna Smith were present.  
 
219 Francis Street- Chairman Dan Brown went over the letter that City Manager Parrish sent to Teruko 
McCarthy with the Committee. City Manager Jay Parrish explained to the committee that the resident at 
219 Francis Street had removed her door without going through the proper process and doing further 
research found the door to be historically significant. City Manager Parrish explained that he had spoke 
with Ms. McCarthy and let her know that she needed to file a Design Review Application and that since 
her house is a contributing building in the Historical District, that staff will refer the project to the City 
Planner for a CEQA review, if she would like. Also it was explained if she restores the door to its original 
place then City review would not be required. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:13AM. The next meeting regular meeting will be August 23, 2012 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
Brianna Smith 
Deputy City Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 08/23/12 8:30am meeting 

NO QUORUM  

  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 67 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Sign Ordinance Committee Minutes for the 7/19/12 2:30 pm meeting 

 
Chairman Michael Bailey opened the meeting at 2:31 pm.  Committee members Michael 
Sweeney, Phil Ostler and Karen Pingitore were present.  Committee member Trevor Harper was 
absent.  City Manager Jay Parrish was in attendance. 
 
No modifications to agenda 
 
June 21, 2012 Minutes:  MOTION: Approve minutes as edited. (Pingitore/Bailey).  All in favor. 
 
No public comment. 
 
BUSINESS  
A. Press Release 
 
Chairman Bailey initiated a discussion on the most appropriate way to inform the public about 
the activities of the Sign Ordinance Committee.  In spite of meeting monthly since September 
2011, no members of the public have attended.  Concern was expressed that when the 
Committee submits a draft ordinance to the Planning Commission, people will then show up at 
public hearings stating that they had no idea this Committee existed and had no opportunity to 
express their views.  Coincidentally, during the discussion, local business person Demetri 
DiStefano showed up unannounced.  In the process of revamping his business, Demetri will also 
be applying for a new sign permit.  The Committee seized on this opportunity to query Demetri 
on how this Committee could best inform the community in general and the businesses in 
particular about the sign ordinance update process.  Concluding that most of the signage and 
most of the changes in the sign ordinance would affect the business community rather than 
residential areas within the City, Demetri felt that a direct mail approach may be the most 
productive.  Other options such as radio spots, an open house session to provide an update to 
interested business persons, and a special meeting allowing non-compliant sign owners to 
address their issues were discussed.  No decision was made on the next step. 
 
B. Letter to Business Community 
 
City Manager Jay Parish presented a draft letter he has prepared to the business community 
that updates them on the activities and progress of the Sign Ordinance Committee. 
 
C. Review, Add, Revise and Approve the following: 
 
Chairman Bailey presented the changes to previously discussed sections of the sign ordinance 
including the following: 
 
 Proposed Sign Ordinance Outline – Draft 2  



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 68 

 

 1001 Background, Purpose, and Scope, Rev. 1  
 1002 Sign Definitions, Rev. 1  
 1004.1 General Sign Regulations, Rev. 1  
 1004.2 Miscellaneous Business Signs, Rev. 1 
 
Discussion focused on the definitions and relationship between the terms “grandfathered sign,” 
“historic significance or historic plaque,” “illegal use sign,” and “non-conforming use sign.”  
There was some confusion and apparent overlap between these terms.  The term 
“grandfathered sign” is normally interpreted by many people as having existed for a long-time 
and not subject to subsequent regulations that may prohibit such signs.   The “grandfathered 
sign” definition included the statement that “A grandfathered sign is a non-conforming sign 
which legally exists and is allowed to remain, due to a significantly high replacement cost, even 
though it may not meet the terms of this (referring to adopted) ordinance.”  The Committee 
discussed the need for or the appropriateness of the “replacement cost” language in the 
grandfathered definition.   
 
Currently, the definition of “historic significance” simply refers to any sign deemed historic by 
the City, state, or federal authority.  The definition for “illegal use sign” pertains to a sign that 
was placed without a permit or a sign that does not comply with the applicable regulations.  A 
“non-conforming use sign” refers to a sign that was lawfully placed prior to adoption or 
amendment of an ordinance.  This definition usually has a defined amortization period after 
which its status changes from non-conforming to abandoned, obsolete, or illegal.  This 
definition seems closest to how most people perceive the term “grandfathered.”  The 
Committee tabled discussion for the next meeting to further distinguish between 
grandfathered and non-conforming signs. 
 
Discussion focused on the sandwich board signs which the Planning Commission does not like.  
Apparently, most, if not all, of the currently placed sandwich board signs are not permitted.  
Many of these signs grew out of the movies produced in the late 1990s when the production 
companies provided local businesses with such signs to mitigate disruption in shopper traffic 
due to filming logistics.  Both Karen Pingitore and Phil Ostler strong believed that sandwich 
boards offer a unique means of messaging and have considerable value for business owners.  
The Committee tabled this discussion until the next meeting when draft language will be 
presented to better define Section 1004.2.1.3 Off-site temporary directional signs. 
 
The Committee reviewed draft language that deleted regulations for Monument signs and 
added regulatory language for Multi-faced and Pole, Pylon, Post, and Panel or Column signs.  
The draft regulatory language for Wind and Door signs was adapted from the International 
Building Code. 
 
At the next meeting, the Committee will approve the revisions and forward these sections to 
the Planning Commission as an update to what we have accomplished so far. 
The Committee tabled the remainder of the agenda items until the next meeting. 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 69 

 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
The Committee received two items through correspondence: 
 

An article titled “Danger Signs and Dangerous Sign Codes:  Avoiding Five Common Errors 
in Sign Regulation” by Randal Morrison was provided by City Manager Jay Parish for the 
Committees’ information. 
 
A letter sent via Certified Mail to Lowell Daniels regarding the Administrative Abatement 
of the “VI Restaurant” sign which did not go through the Design Review Committee and 
currently is not permitted. 

 
The next regular meeting will be August 16, 2012 at 2:30 pm.  The meeting was adjourned at 
5:08 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 Michael Sweeney 
 
 

 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 70 

 

  

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 71 

 

 

Section 13c: Council Reports and Comments   



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 72 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 73 

 

 
 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 74 

 

Humboldt/Del Norte 
Hazardous Materials Response Authority 

Special Meeting Minutes 
Monday, May 7, 2012 

 
1. Roll Call: 
 
Via Speaker phone:  Mr. Dale Watson, Del Norte County; Chief Steve Wakefield, Crescent City 
 
Present: Mr. Jay Parrish Chairperson, City of Ferndale; Mr. Mark Wheetley, City of Arcata; Ms. 
Susan Ornelas, City of Arcata; Ms. Melinda J. Ciarabellini, City of Eureka; Mr. Glenn Bernald, City 
of Blue Lake; Chief Mary McQuillen, Yurok Tribe, Mr. Tim Sanderson, Yurok Tribe 
 
Guests:  Captain Ed Laidlaw, Eureka Fire Department; Mr. Dan Larkin, Humboldt County Office 
of Emergency Services; Ms Maje Hoyos, Humboldt County Division of Environmental Health; 
Mr. Jose Gonzalez, Humboldt County Division of Environmental Health. 
 
2. Convening of the Meeting: 
 
Meeting was called to order at 4:38 p.m. by Mr. Jay Parrish. 
 
3. Public Comments: 
 
The public was invited to address the Board, none were present. 
 
4. Old Business: 
 

A. Mr. Jay Parrish called for approval of the July 11, 2011 minutes.  The motion to approve 
the minutes was presented by Ms. Susan Ornelas and was seconded by Ms. Melinda 
Ciarabellini; the motion was carried by those members present. 

 
B. California Department of Justice, Humboldt County Drug Task Force, and Humboldt/ Del 

Norte Hazardous Materials Response Authority emergency response to Metham-
phetamine Labs.  Mr. Larry Lancaster was not able to attend, will be addressed at the 
next regular meeting.  

 
5. New Business: 
 

A. Captain Ed Laidlaw reported on the Proposed 2012/2013 Budget for the Humboldt/Del 
Norte Hazardous Materials Response Authority as being identical to the Budget for 
2011/2012 with no increases or reductions at this time.  Current Year 2011-2012 Budget 
is currently under budget.  Captain Laidlaw presented for approval to the Board a 
request to purchase a new known/unknown Hazardous Category Chemical Identification 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 75 

 

System to replace the currently used Identification System that is 10 years old and is out 
of date.  The motion to approve Proposed 2012/2013 Budget was presented by Ms. 
Susan Ornelas and was seconded by Mr. Glenn Bernald; the motion was carried by those 
members present.Mr. Jay Parrish extended a warm welcome to Public Safety Chief Mary 
McQuillen and to Mr. Tim Sanderson of the Yurok Tribe our newest Board Member and 
Alternate Board Member respectively.  Chief Mary McQuillen introduced herself and 
Mr. Tim Sanderson Emergency Services Coordinator for the Yurok Tribe. 

 
 

B. Discussion regarding appointment of Legal Counsel for the Humboldt/ Del Norte will be 
addressed at the next Regular meeting of the Humboldt/Del Norte Hazardous Materials 
Response Authority. 

 
C. Captain Ed Laidlaw presented to the Board the 2011 Annual Response and Training 

Report.  Five Level I responses during the 2011 Calendar Year, none require a full 
response form the Hazardous Material Response Team.  Monthly training and training 
to allied agencies was conducted throughout the year, one member of the Hazardous 
Materials Response Team was sent to California Specialized Training Institute (CSTI) 
technician training.   

 
6. Adjournment: 
 
Mr. Jay Parrish called adjournment at 5:00 pm.  A Regular Meeting of the Humboldt / Del Norte 
Hazardous Materials Response Authority meeting is scheduled at the Eureka Fire Department 
Conference Room on Monday, July 9, 2011 at 4:30 pm.   
 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 76 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 77 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 78 

 

 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 79 

 

 

                                                 



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 80 

 

    



September 6, 2012 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 81 

 

                                   

 
 
 
 

Section 14: Adjourn 
 


